# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON 26 JULY 2022 AT 2.00 PM AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT HILL, REIGATE, SURREY, RH2 8EF.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting.

#### Members:

- \* = Present
- \*Tim Oliver (Chairman)
- \*Natalie Bramhall
- \*Clare Curran
- \*Matt Furniss
- \*Mark Nuti
- \*Denise Turner-Stewart
- \*Sinead Mooney
- \*Marisa Heath
- \*Becky Rush
- \*Kevin Deanus

#### **Deputy Cabinet Members:**

- \*Maureen Attewell
- \*Rebecca Paul
- Steve Bax
- \*Jordan Beech

#### Members in attendance:

Lance Spencer, Local Member for Goldsworth East and Horsell Village Jonathan Essex, Local Member for Redhill East and Green Party Group Leader

Nick Darby, Local Member for the Dittons and Residents' Association and Independent Group Leader

Will Forster, Local Member for Woking South

### PART ONE IN PUBLIC

#### 100/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]

Apologies were received from Steve Bax.

#### 101/22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 31 MAY 2022 [Item 2]

These were agreed as a correct record of the meeting.

#### 102/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]

There were none.

#### PROCEDURAL MATTERS [Item 4]

#### 103/22 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS [Item 4a]

There was one member question. The question and response was published as a supplement to the agenda. In relation to his main question Lance Spencer asked when the research been undertaken by the research partner to engage and listen to families using services and those currently not engaging with the service would be finalised and whether this would be made public. The Cabinet Member for Children and Families explained that research was ongoing and in fact outreach was being undertaken on social media inviting members of the public, families, children to make their views known. The research would be finalised by the end of the summer and the Cabinet Member would check if the report could be shared with members.

#### 104/22 PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 4b]

There were two public questions. The questions and responses were published as a supplement to the agenda.

In relation to the first public question Malcolm Robertson's question queried the claim that the gasifier is certified as currently operating at 55% of the time. The Cabinet Member was asked to confirm if the certification was for the gasifier, as specified by Surrey, or if it just related to the plant working as an incinerator? The Cabinet Member agreed to send the questioner a written response.

In relation to her public question Jenny Desoutter asked if the new posts and the land management policy would put biodiversity and protecting nature as its first overall priority. She then asked if the range of initiatives to support biodiversity would be put into an overarching biodiversity action plan and if baseline surveys across the countryside estate would be undertaken. The Cabinet Member for Environment explained that biodiversity had been treated within the climate change plan with urgency. Baseline surveys had been done with Surrey Wildlife Trust and a biodiversity plan would be included in a vision for the county. Biodiversity was a priority for the Cabinet Member and more detail would be coming through in the autumn.

#### 105/22 PETITIONS [Item 4c]

There were none.

### 106/22 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED ON REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE [Item 4d]

There were none.

### 107/22 REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES, TASK GROUPS, LOCAL COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL [Item 5]

There were none.

## 108/22 LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC INVESTMENT BOARD DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING [Item 6]

There were ten decisions for noting. The Cabinet Member for Communities informed members that two applications to your fund surrey had been approved and would increase wider community involvement.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting be noted.

#### 109/22 CABINET MEMBER OF THE MONTH [Item 7]

The Cabinet member of the month update was presented by the Cabinet Member for Communities, Mark Nuti. The following key points were raised:

- Your Fund Surrey was picking up momentum and residents were encouraged to submit bids to the fund.
- Surrey had the second busiest library service in the country. All libraries in Surrey would be introducing library welfare officers to support the local community.
- Customer Services had recently launched a new telephone and digital welfare information and advice service for residents who are struggling and need financial, welfare or wellbeing support, including newly arrived Ukrainian refugees.
- Ten newly recruited community link officers would be working alongside councillors to help join up people, partners, funding, and opportunities, making better use of resources and supporting the ambitions of our communities.
- There was now three Local Area Coordinators (LACs) working alongside local communities in Maybury/Sheerwater, Horley (Central/West) and Hurst Green, and another about to be recruited to work in Old Dean / St Michael's. LACs are based in the local community for the local community and offer a unique type of individual support at a very local level. They help people of all ages become stronger, healthier, happier and more connected members of their community.
- The Cabinet Member explained that there were a number of events taking place across Surrey during the school holidays, many of these being free. The summer reading challenge would be taking place in libraries and there were a number of adventure zones across Surrey. There was a cultural mapping service on the Surrey County Council website which explains the exciting things going on around Surrey.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the Cabinet Member of the Month report be noted.

#### 110/22 INCREASING ACCESS TO LIBRARY BUILDINGS [Item 8]

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Communities who explained that Cabinet were being asked to agree the introduction of Open Access technology into libraries. Open Access was technology that enables increased and flexible access to buildings, through library membership-based door entry systems and associated security features. Open Access would increase the ability of libraries to meet the needs of communities, support wider strategic priorities, and be fit and sustainable for the future. There would

be an initial capital allocation of £345k from the £1.8m identified in the Capital Pipeline. The Open Access technology would be introduced into thirteen libraries with the expectation that the rest of the libraries would have access to the technology in 2-3 years' time. There was support from Cabinet on the item and a recognition that libraries would become community hubs. Will Forster queried what difference this technology would make to residents, the evidence base for introducing this technology and what reductions would be made to staffing as a result of this. The Cabinet Member for Communities stated that this work was being done as residents had asked for libraries to be open later and for longer. There were no planned redundancies but open technology would enable staff to work smarter.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That Cabinet agrees the introduction of Open Access technology in thirteen libraries across the county.
- 2. That Cabinet agrees an initial capital allocation of £345k from the £1.8m identified in the Capital Pipeline.
- 3. That Cabinet agrees the proposed approach to a phased introduction of Open Access in additional libraries.
- 4. That Cabinet delegates to the Capital Programme Panel (CPP) the approval of any subsequent release of funding, within the overall envelope identified in the Capital Pipeline and subject to a robust business case.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

Cabinet agreement to introduce Open Access technology into libraries is essential to unlock the full potential of library buildings, increasing access beyond the current opening hours, and empowering communities to reap wider benefit from using these valuable community assets. Thirteen libraries have been prioritised, based on analysis of where there is greatest opportunity to achieve positive impact, and with a good geographic spread across the county. Careful analysis of usage, cost and revenue generation opportunity from the initial thirteen will inform the proposal and business case for future phases of implementation.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture Select Committee)

#### 111/22 GOVERNMENT ADULT SOCIAL CARE CHARGING REFORMS [Item9]

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health who explained that the report summarised the current proposals which make up the government's Adult Social Care Charging and Fair Cost of Care reforms and the anticipated cumulative impact for Surrey County Council. The reforms would harmonise costs and provide a fair cost of care for our self funders. In Surrey we have 60% self funders. The lack of detail pose a number of risks to the council. These risks are presented in potential and modelled increased costs, reduced income and increased numbers of new residents needing support within adult social care. The reforms have potential to disrupt provider relationships and will lead to significant increase in staffing capacity. The Cabinet Member said that she was confident that the adult social care

leadership and corporate leadership would navigate through these reforms and implement them to the benefit of all of our Surrey residents. The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources raised concerns around the financial impact of the proposed reforms on the Councils financial stability. The magnitude and uncertainty around the adult social care reform was the biggest unquantifiable area of financial pressure.

Will Forster queried how the possible impacts from the reforms would be displayed on the councils risk register and how the council planned to reduce the cumulative costs of the reforms to the council over the next ten years. The Leader stated that this was a sighting paper as reforms would come about in October 2023. The Leader did not think it was helpful to pin down what the reforms would look like without quality data. The Leader had been reassured that the next Prime Minister would honour the commitment of the government to fund the reforms. It was important that the government analyse the data from the trailblazer councils as this would help better understand the counties position moving forward.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That Cabinet notes the key changes, implications and overarching risks of the government's Adult Social Care Charging and Fair Cost of Care reforms for Surrey residents and Surrey County Council.
- 2. That Cabinet notes the collaborative approach and the emerging plans to prepare, and as far as possible mitigate risks, for implementation from October 2023.
- 3. That Cabinet approves up to £2.9m of the Council's Budget Equalisation Reserve to be used to fund additional expenditure required in 2022/23 to facilitate the implementation of Adult Social Care Charging and Fair Cost of Care reforms above funding provided by government as set out in Annex 2.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

The Government published its Adult Social Care system reform white paper 'People at the heart of care' on 1 December. The intent of the white paper is to make the system fairer and ensure more people do not face enormous care costs. In Surrey the reforms will mean the Council will fund care for more people, the availability and therefore the quality of care may be affected, and a significant funding short-fall is anticipated based on current proposed government funding which has been widely commented on as insufficient to meet the full cost of the reforms. With high levels of self-funding residents and existing staffing challenges in Surrey, the implementation timetable means it will be challenging to recruit, upgrade systems and build capacity to support so many residents. Current government guidance recommends an awareness campaign from January – March 2023, assessments starting in April 2023 in readiness for implementation from October 2023.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Adults and Health Select Committee)

## 112/22 RECOMMENDATION ON THE DELIVERY MODEL FOR EXTRA CARE HOUSING AT THE FORMER BENTLEY DAY CENTRE, BANSTEAD HORSESHOE, REIGATE AND BANSTEAD [Item 10]

The Cabinet Member for Adults and Health introduced the report explaining that the report set out the proposed delivery approach for one site of extra care housing at the former Bentley Day Centre. This supports the councils strategy to deliver accommodation of a total of 725 affordable units by 2030, which will enable people to access the right health and social care at the right time, in the right place. Providing appropriate housing for residents that need help to enable them to remain independent. The development will be in the heart of the community and the design will make these homes for life. Support was given to the Pond Meadow site in Guildford where 60 units were being developed. The property team and the Cabinet Member for Property and Waste were thanked for delivering the much needed properties.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- That Cabinet approves the development of Extra Care Housing on the former Bentley Day Centre site owned by the Council set out in this paper.
- 2. That Cabinet approves external delivery of Extra Care Housing at the former Bentley Day Centre through a tender for a strategic development and housing management partner(s) as the preferred option. This site will be tendered with four further sites that have previously been approved for Extra Care Housing by Cabinet.
- 3. That Cabinet grants delegated authority for contract award to the following officers:
  - Deputy Chief Executive, Executive Director for Resources and Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources
  - b. Executive Director for Adult Social Care in consultation with Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care
- 4. That Cabinet notes that a separate procurement process will be conducted to identify onsite support and care provision to avoid longterm support and care provision being tied into the development and housing management contract.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

The development of Extra Care Housing on the site set out in this paper will represent an important contribution towards the Council's strategic objective to expand affordable Extra Care Housing provision by 2030.

Tendering for strategic development and housing management partner(s) to take forwards the development of Extra Care Housing on the former Bentley Day Centre is consistent with previous decisions made by Cabinet. In October 2019, July 2020 and October 2020 Cabinet agreed to identify a strategic partner(s) for the development and housing management of Extra Care Housing at the former Pond Meadow School, the former Brockhurst Care Home and the former Pinehurst Resource Centre, Salisbury Road and Lakeside sites through tendering processes.

There are multiple benefits for the Council from including the former Bentley Day Centre site in the tender with the existing four sites. These include:

- Accessing economies of scale from delivering Extra Care Housing across more settings, which is likely to lead to a more commercially favourable response for the Council.
- Preventing unnecessary delay to the delivery of Extra Care Housing at the former Bentley Day Centre because it would not be advised to tender a single site.
- Accelerating the delivery of the strategy by including the site in the upcoming tender.

This is consistent with our ASC vision for development of Extra Care Housing, which has been clearly communicated through market and stakeholder engagement.

The other option available is for the Council to directly deliver the Extra Care Housing scheme at the Bentley site. This would involve the Council committing significant capital expenditure and be responsible for the ongoing housing management function of the Extra Care Housing setting. This option is not recommended as it is anticipated significantly less financially beneficial to the Council and would mean one Extra Care Housing scheme would be developed by the Council in isolation while a strategic development and housing management partner was developing four other Extra Care Housing schemes (assuming the tender for these sites is successful, which we expect to be the case based on market engagement). Financial modelling for both options is set out in the Part 2 paper.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Adults and Health Select Committee)

#### 113/22 SUNBURY HUB [Item 11]

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Property and Waste who explained that Cabinet were being asked to approve capital funding to develop a new integrated five story multi surface hub on the former Sunbury Fire station site. Office space will be accommodated on the 1<sup>st</sup>- 3<sup>rd</sup> levels and the 4<sup>th</sup> and 5<sup>th</sup> levels would be dedicated to supported independent living. The site was well located and was easily accessible by local transport. Developing this vacant site and relocating public services into the new building would save the Council backlog and future maintenance costs on the existing old and rundown properties. This would be a second hub delivered by the council following the Merstham Hub. Members were in support of the proposals and recognised the huge amount of effort that had gone into this project. Councillor Alison Todd was thanked for all her efforts in this project.

#### **RESOLVED:**

1. That Cabinet approves the allocation of capital funding from the pipeline to the capital programme for the development of the detailed design and construction of Sunbury Hub. The funding required is commercially sensitive and is set out in the Part 2 report.

- That Cabinet approves procurement of an appropriate construction contractor partner for the delivery of all associated services required in accordance with the Council's Procurement and Contract Standing Orders.
- Regarding the procurement of the construction contractor, Cabinet agrees that the Executive Director of Resources and the Director of Land and Property authorise and award such contracts, within the +/-5% budgetary tolerance level.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

Approving the recommendations in this report will:

- a. Regenerate a vacant Council-owned site.
- b. Accelerate much-needed investment in Sunbury to support regeneration.
- Deliver a multi-purpose building that improves service delivery and the community experience.
- d. Optimise use of Council-owned assets and release other assets for Service re-use or disposal, in line with the Council's Asset and Place Strategy.
- e. Support the Adult Social Care (ASC) transformation programme ambition to reduce the number of people with a learning disability and/or autism in residential care by 40-50% by 2025, and ensure these residents are supported in-county.
- f. Provide modern space and enable digital solutions for Services.
- g. Produce benefits which link to all of the Council's strategic priority areas.
- h. Specifically reduce carbon emissions by using innovative technologies and smart build in the project's design.
- i. Support the delivery of the Council's Agile Office Estate programme.
- i. Create commercial opportunities where appropriate.
- k. Offer tangible social value to residents.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and Performance Select Committee)

### 114/22 FREEMANTLES SCHOOL PROJECT, PHASE 1 SEND CAPITAL PROGRAMME [Item 12]

The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning introduced the report explaining that the Freemantles School expansion project was one of the remaining Phase 1 SEND Capital Programme projects to be delivered that was approved by Cabinet in September 2019. The original brief to expand the school by 40 additional places for autistic children with severe or profound and multiple learning difficulties was increased in 2020 to 72 places and Cabinet subsequently approved an budget of approximately £10m in March 2021. The project would reduce the councils reliance on independent schools, reduce journey times between home and school for the children and young people, and ensure that the children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities who require specialist placements have their needs met in Surrey communities and schools.

The Leader highlighted that residents council tax would go towards the £140 million to deliver 2300 additional specialist places. Both SEND places and delivering extra care facilities were hugely important to the council. Will Forster welcomed the report and supported the project. He queried if the project was still achievable taking into account of issues in the construction industry with sourcing materials. The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning stated that the council was committed to the timescales highlighted in the report.

#### **RESOLVED:**

1. That Cabinet approves £15.159m SEND Capital funding against the Freemantles School Phase 1 Capital project. This an uplift to the individual scheme budget allocation within the existing SEND Capital Programme funding envelope.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

The project will deliver 72 additional specialist school places and re-provide 54 current specialist school places for autistic children with severe or profound and multiple learning difficulties in Surrey from September 2023 onwards.

The scheme represents good value for money at a cost of £120k per pupil place. Equivalent annual independent sector placement costs for the 72 new places would be a minimum of £3.8m per year compared to £1.6m per year for maintained special school placements.

Investing in the Freemantles expansion project now generates the positive impact on outcomes for pupils with complex special educational needs and disabilities, as well as improving the council's financial sustainability.

The Freemantles School expansion project is business critical to ensure Surrey County Council discharges its statutory duties under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999, Sections 13 and 14 of the Education Act 1996 and Part 27 Section 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture Select Committee)

### 115/22 REPLACEMENT OF HYDROTHERAPY POOL AT PHILIP SOUTHCOTE SCHOOL, ADDLESTONE [Item 13]

The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the report. Cabinet were being asked to approve capital funding to design and construct a new hydrotherapy pool at Philip Southcote School, a Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) school in Addlestone. Hydrotherapy was a fundamental part of the school's curriculum, and the current pool and building were now beyond reasonable economic repair. The report proposes replacing the current structure and constructing a new building on the existing site, to house the new pool and its associated facilities. The proposals would continue to benefit residents, swim clubs, groups and organisations who hire the pool.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- That Cabinet approves capital funding identified in the Capital Programme Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) Pipeline allocation for Philip Southcote School. An additional amount will be transferred from the Corporate Maintenance Budget. The funding required is commercially sensitive and is set out in the Part 2 report.
- 2. That Cabinet approves procurement of the supply chain for the delivery of all associated services required, in accordance with the Council's Procurement and Contract Standing Orders.
- Regarding the procurement of supply chain partners, Cabinet agrees that the Executive Director of Resources and the Director of Land and Property are authorised to award such contracts, within the +/-5% budgetary tolerance level.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

Approving the report's proposal will:

- a. Support the Council to fulfil its statutory obligations for SEND pupils attending Philip Southcote School.
- b. Support the school to fulfil its curriculum and teaching responsibilities.
- c. Have a positive impact on the pupils physical, emotional and mental health, leading to better focus on their learning and education.
- d. Allow the school to continue and strengthen community links as it hires out the pool and its facilities to third parties (outside of curriculum hours).
- e. Continue to benefit residents, swim clubs, groups and organisations who hire the pool.
- f. Allow the school to continue and increase income from pool hire to support the pool's operating costs and enhance the school's therapeutic offering for its pupils.
- g. The school also runs a café when hiring out the pool; the café is staffed by pupils who gain valuable work experience and life-skills.
- h. Continue to provide a facility that has been in place for over 50 years.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and Performance Select Committee)

#### 116/22 LOCAL BUS CONTRACT RETENDERING [Item 14]

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Transport, Infrastructure and Economy who explained that there were currently 207 bus services operating in Surrey and the County Council gives some financial support to around 75% of these. The report seeks to award twenty local bus contracts to nine operators, for the provision of twenty-four public bus services. The decision relates to 20 current contracts which expire on 27 August 2022 and have been retendered. If awarded the new contracts will commence from 28 August 2022. Overall, these proposals would maintain the existing network of bus provision with some amendments proposed to the vehicles operating these services which will improve emissions standards and air quality. Euro 6 buses would be replacing Euro 5 buses on 14 contracts

which comprises 17 services in total. The remaining 7 services will seek opportunities for funding to enable them to move to Euro 6 or even hydrogen or electric. The Cabinet Member for Environment welcomed the introduction of Euro 6 buses.

#### **RESOLVED:**

1. That Cabinet notes the background information set out in this report, and following consideration of the results of the procurement process, award the contracts to the operators as set out in the Part 2 report.

#### Reasons for Decisions:

Progressing the award of these contracts will enable SCC to:

- Provide a robust local bus network providing essential public transport to residents so that they may continue to access key services, including employment, education, health care and essentially shopping, whilst supporting resident well-being by providing the ability for residents to travel throughout Surrey.
- Provide bus services that are delivered by reputable operators that meet the County Council's specified quality standards and enable us to meet our statutory duty as a Local Transport Authority.
- Establish sustainable funding arrangements with bus operators.
- Increase the proportion of lower emission Euro 6 buses on our network, replacing those with far higher emissions.

To comply with Procurement Standing Orders (PSO), Cabinet approval for contracts that reach a specified value is required.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee)

### 117/22 OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE FOR THE RE-PROCUREMENT OF WASTE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SERVICES [Item 15]

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Property and Waste who explained that the item proposes a future model for the delivery of waste following considerable work undertaken on the outline business case presented within the report. As the report indicated, the situation with respect to the gasifier on the Eco park at Shepperton remains unclear. The facility was operational and had been accepted by the independent certifier. However, there was an outstanding dispute with Suez over the delivery of facilities at the Eco park. The council was working to find the best resolution possible and a further update on this would be brought to cabinet in the autumn.

#### **RESOLVED:**

1. That Cabinet approves the Outline Business Case for the future reprocurement of the Waste Treatment and Disposal Services to inform the development of a Detailed Procurement Strategy.

2. That Cabinet delegates authority of approval of the final procurement route to market for services from 2024 to the Cabinet Member for Property and Waste, in consultation with the Executive Director for Environment, Transport and Infrastructure.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

Approval of the OBC is critical to enable the Council to continue to deliver its statutory duty seamlessly beyond September 2024. This will also be instrumental in designing the services to both maximise value for money and contribute to Surrey's ambitious environmental targets.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee)

#### 118/22 2022/23 MONTH 2 (MAY) FINANCIAL REPORT [Item 16]

The report provided details of the County Council's 2022/23 financial position as at 31st May 2022 (M2) for revenue and capital budgets, and the expected outlook for the remainder of the financial year. The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resource explained that at M2, the Council was forecasting a full year deficit of £23.0m, against the revenue budget approved by Council in February 2022. The council was experiencing higher than budgeted inflation arising from increased global and economic uncertainty and this significantly increased the risk of the Council on delivering the revenue and capital budgets for this financial year. The Deputy Leader gave an update on significant budget pressures and areas of risks.

It was explained that there had been an overspend with Surrey Fire and Rescue. The Cabinet Member for Community Protection explained that the service was facing a difficult period in terms of recruitment and retention with the London Fire Brigade advertising for roles. There had been a temporary increase in staffing and investment in learning and development opportunities that had come at a cost. The service was investing in equipment and specialist training. The Cabinet Member gave an update on all the incidents the service had attended including the fire at Hankley Common and thanked staff for their dedication and professionalism in keeping the public safe. The Leader thanked the Chief Fire Officer and the teams for their professionalism in challenging times. This view was echoed by the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health who thanked the service for attending an incident at the exservicemen's club in Staines.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That Cabinet notes the Council's forecast revenue and capital budget positions for the year. The report provided details of the County Council's 2022/23 financial position as at 31st May 2022 (M2) for revenue and capital budgets, and the expected outlook for the remainder of the financial year.

#### Reasons for Decisions:

This report is to comply with the agreed policy of providing a monthly budget monitoring report to Cabinet for approval of any necessary actions.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and Performance Select Committee)

#### 119/22 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 17]

**RESOLVED:** That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

## 120/22 RECOMMENDATION ON THE DELIVERY MODEL FOR EXTRA CARE HOUSING AT THE FORMER BENTLEY DAY CENTRE, BANSTEAD HORSESHOE, REIGATE AND BANSTEAD [Item 18]

The Cabinet Member for Adults and Health introduced the Part 2 report which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

#### **RESOLVED:**

See Exempt Minute [E-18-22]

#### Reasons for Decisions:

See Exempt Minute [E-18-22]

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Adults and Health Select Committee)

#### 121/22 SUNBURY HUB [Item 19]

The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the Part 2 report which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

#### **RESOLVED:**

See Exempt Minute [E-19-22]

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

See Exempt Minute [E-19-22]

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and Performance Select Committee)

### 122/22 REPLACEMENT OF HYDROTHERAPY POOL AT PHILIP SOUTHCOTE SCHOOL, ADDLESTONE [Item 20]

The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the Part 2 report which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

#### **RESOLVED:**

See Exempt Minute [E-20-22]

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

See Exempt Minute [E-20-22]

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and Performance Select Committee)

#### 123/22 LOCAL BUS CONTRACT RETENDERING [Item 21]

The Cabinet Member for Transport, Infrastructure and Economy introduced the Part 2 report which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

#### **RESOLVED:**

See Exempt Minute [E-21-22]

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

See Exempt Minute [E-21-22]

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee)

### 124/22 OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE FOR THE RE-PROCUREMENT OF WASTE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SERVICES [Item 22]

The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the Part 2 report which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) and paragraph 5: Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

#### **RESOLVED:**

See Exempt Minute [E-22-22]

#### Reasons for Decisions:

638

See Exempt Minute [E-22-22]

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee)

#### 125/22 PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS [Item 23]

It was agreed that non-exempt information may be made available to the press and public, where appropriate.

Meeting closed at 15:30		
	Chairman	

